1	State of Alaska						
2	Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development						
3	Division of Corporations, Business and Professi	_					
4	1	0					
5	Alaska Board of Pharmacy						
6	Alaska Doald of I flatfilacy						
7	MINUTES OF THE MEETING	-					
8		•					
9	February 18 - 19, 2021 Videoconferen	nce					
	1 columny 10 - 17, 2021 viacocomerci	nec					
10	Dry grath griter of AS 00 01 070/2) and in committee as writh the	a marrial and of AS 44.62					
11	By authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with the	_					
12	Article 6, a scheduled meeting of the Board of Pharmacy v						
13	February 18 - 19, 2021. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, in	-person attendance was					
14	not available.						
15		TT: 0.00					
16	Agenda Item 1 Call to Order/Roll Call	Time: 9:02 a.m.					
17	TT 1 4 E 1 40 2004 11 C 11 1. 1 1	Cl : D: 1 II 1: +0.02					
18	The day 1, February 18, 2021 videoconference was called to order b	y Chair, Rich Holt at 9:02					
19	a.m.						
20	Road members arecent constituting a greature						
21 22	Board members present, constituting a quorum:						
23	Richard Holt, PharmD #PHAP2008, MBA – Chair						
24	Leif Holm, PharmD #PHAP1606 – Vice Chair						
25	Lana Bell, RPh #PHAP893						
26	Tammy Lindemuth, Public Member (joined at 1:05 p.m.)						
27	Sharon Long, Public Member						
28	Justin Ruffridge, #PHAP1787						
29	J we want 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2 - 2						
30	Division staff present:						
31	1						
32	Laura Carrillo, Executive Administrator						
33	Lisa Sherrell, PDMP Manager						
34	Heather Noe, Occupational Licensing Examiner						
35	Bethany Carlile, Occupational Licensing Examiner						
36	Sonia Lipker, Lead Investigator						
37	Michael Bowles, Investigator III						
38	Sharon Walsh, Deputy Director						
39	Melissa Dumas, Administrative Officer						
40							
41							
42							

43 <u>Members from the public present/registered:</u>

44

48

54

59

45 Pauline Henriques-Perry, Division of Legislative Audit

46 Sheila Sinclair, Trilogy Medwaste

47 Lauren Paul, CVS Health

Rob Geddes, Albertsons Companies

49 Lorri Walmsley, Walgreens

Ashley Schaber, Alaska Pharmacists Association/Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

51 Caren Robinson, AkPHA

52 Anne Harthman, Broadway Apothecary

Lis Houchen, NACDS

Jennifer Adams, Idaho State University College of Pharmacy

55 Rich Palombo, Express Scripts/Cigna

56 Christy Grennon, ABC

57 Brenda Walker, VA

Jessica Adams, TelePharm

Molly Gray, Alaska Pharmacists Association

60 James J Henderson, Division of Legislative Audit

Emily Haugh, Amazon Pharmacy

Gretchen Glaspy, Alaska Pharmacy Association/Bartlett Regional Hospital

Erin Narus, SOA

63 64 65

62

Agenda Item 2 Review/Approve Agenda

ADDDOTE

67 68 69

66

Chair Holt went through the agenda for day 1. Ms. Carrillo commented two additional pieces of correspondence were added to the OnBoard packet and additional legislative documents were added to the budget report/division update for Agenda Item #13.

70 71 72

On a motion duly made by Lana Bell to approve the meeting agenda, seconded by Justin Ruffridge, and approved unanimously, it was:

73 74

RESOLVED to accept the February 18, 2021 meeting agenda as written.

75 76

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT	
Leif Holm	X				
Richard Holt	X				
Justin Ruffridge	X				
Lana Bell	X				
Tammy Lindemuth				X	
James Henderson				X	
Sharon Long	X				

83 84 Time: 9:05 a.m.

The motion passed with no further discussion.

85 86 87

88 89

Agenda Item 3 **Ethics**

Time: 9:09 a.m.

For transparency, Chair Holt reminded the board and the public that he currently participates in the biweekly COVID-19 board chairs meeting as well as the biweekly PDMP board chairs meeting.

91 92 93

94

90

Agenda Item 4 Review/Approve Meeting Minutes

Time: 9:11 a.m.

The board reviewed the November 5 - 6 and December 3 - 4, 2020 draft meeting minutes.

95 96 97

On a motion duly made by Sharon Long to approve the meeting agenda, seconded by Lana Bell, and approved unanimously, it was:

98 99 100

RESOLVED to approve the November 5 – 6, 2020 and December 3-4, 2020 meeting minutes as written.

101 102 103

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Leif Holm	X			
Richard Holt	X			
Justin Ruffridge	X			
Lana Bell	X			
Tammy Lindemuth				X
James Henderson				X
Sharon Long	X			

110 111

The motion passed with no further discussion.

112 113

TASK 1 114

Ms. Carrillo will send the minutes to Chair Holt for signature and request they be published to the 115 116 board's meeting page.

117 118

119

Agenda Item 5 **Public Comment**

Time: 9:15 a.m.

There were no public comments. 120

121

Agenda Item 6 PDMP Update

Time: 9:20 a.m.

122 123

124 Board Report

Ms. Sherrell provided the board the update that Appriss Health was awarded the contract for the 125

PDMP to continue providing the platform, AWARxE. Ms. Sherrell noted several enhancements 126

are in limbo until the contract can be finalized and executed, but that the goal date is April 2021.

128 The PDMP also received the Notice of Award for the Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) grant

with funding through September 2023. The board also and had its Awareness & Feedback

130 Questionnaire from February/March 2020 evaluated. There were 110 pharmacists who

participated in the questionnaire. Ms. Sherrell informed the board the 2021 questionnaire would be

launched in the spring following the end of program renewals. Ms. Sherrell also presented the data

on registration, reviewing, and reporting.

Ms. Sherrell reviewed licensee compliance data and informed the board a letter was sent to 94 pharmacies informing them of missing or delinquent data submissions. Responses have positive and Ms. Sherrell is assisting pharmacies submit or resubmit data. Dr. Holm inquired whether there was a delinquent threshold date that triggered the letter, to which Ms. Sherrell indicated was 1. Ms. Sherrell also indicated some pharmacies weren't actually dispensing or distributing controlled substances and one hadn't switched their software over. Dr. Holm commented he's not able to manually correct delinquent dates, and Ms. Sherrell explained the delinquent date is a historical mark. Several reports have to be pulled to gain a more accurate picture of the delinquency data. Ms. Carrillo explained we could pull a dispensary activity report, which would show data submitted, even if done retroactively.

Ms. Sherrell reviewed recommendations to prescribing boards and acknowledged a lot of education is needed to explain to providers what it means to dispenses and encourage the use of delegates. Prescribing boards have also been asked to come up with plans to address delinquent reporting.

Ms. Sherrell then reviewed the prescriber report card aggregate data, which describes the # of prescribers prescribing at least once, # who reviewed zero patients, # of providers prescribing over 90MME, and # issuing dangerous combination therapies. Chair Holt inquired what the MED board's dangerous combo of benzos, opioids, and carisoprodol had gone down from 47 to 21. NUR also decreased. Chair Holt explained that the benzo, opioid, and carisoprodol is considered the holy trinity by the DEA, and they are investigated for dispensing this combination; pharmacists are being arrested for dispensing them. Chair Holt presented relevant articles to the PDMP Board Chairs meeting, and Dr. Wein commented he couldn't see any medically justifiable reason for dispensing that combination. Chair Holt recalled an inquiry made to AAG Weigand around establishing regulations for dispensing off-label uses hydroxycholorquine, alluding to the need for drafting regulations. Similarly, an inquiry was made around not dispensing dangerous combinations since pharmacists are getting arrested for dispensing the holy trinity.

Ms. Sherrell returned to the questionnaire: Over half of pharmacists (55%) reviewed prior to dispensing or at least once a day (29%). The majority of pharmacists (85%) lacked confidence that the prescriber was checking. Ms. Sherrell indicated she was surprised at the high number of pharmacists (79%) who had denied a prescription. Almost half of the pharmacist indicated there was a barrier, but those who said there was cited a lack of time and not due to a lack of education

or understanding. This is where use of a delegate can be beneficial to reviewing patients when there is limited time.

Legislative Report (2020)

Ms. Carrillo referred to the board's previously PDMP legislative report, which is typically submitted in February or March. As an overview, Ms. Carrillo explained there are certain metrics that must be included in the report, including how use of the PDMP contributed to the reduction of inappropriate prescriptions being issued. Ms. Carrillo informed the board this year's report will highlight some of the challenges but also the level of outreach provided to assist licensees come into compliance and better understand the program. Chair Holt reiterated the board's education and outreach has gone beyond what may be sufficient and thanked Ms. Sherrell and Ms. Carrillo for their continued work and participation at the other boards' meetings.

Disciplinary Matrix

Ms. Carrillo gave a recap of the board's disciplinary matrix for reporting and the September, 2020 letter setting the basis for quarterly compliance reviews beginning January 1, 2021. Ms. Carrillo prompted the board to discuss what continuous delinquency means, is it # of days, # of prescriptions, etc. Ms. Carrillo also added the matrix would establish a guide for staff to know when to refer a matter to the investigative unit.

Dr. Ruffridge's approach would be to target those pharmacies not reporting at all and not responding to delinquent notices from the Board. He acknowledged there are multiple levels where a report submission could go wrong, but that a meaningful effort to respond to the letter demonstrates a desire to change. Dr. Ruffridge added there's not a way currently to notify the provider when there is a missed reporting day, and Ms. Sherrell indicated Appriss tested this in another state, which resulted in pharmacies receiving false alerts. Staff is working on implementing this in Alaska after lessons learned from other states.

Sharon Long inquired about what level of delinquency triggers a reprimand that costs \$5,000, emphasizing the need to allow human discretion and the ability for the board to assess on an individual basis. Ms. Bell stated education is needed to get providers to understand, but that it has been 4 years since mandatory use. Chair Holt inquired whether the board wanted to refer licensees who don't notify us when they are not dispensing or distributing. Ms. Carrillo commented it's not currently in regulations, so questioned whether we could refer something to Investigations of the letter doesn't have the force of law. Ms. Bell asked whether pharmacies have the opportunity to report what their dispensing or distributing status, to which Ms. Carrillo confirmed. Dr. Holm acknowledged this is mandatory and expressed support of being more stern.

Chair Holt posed to the board that when the one reviewing board member looks at these cases after the next scheduled review in April, what is the board member going to go off of to determine what their recommendation is going to be? Dr. Ruffridge stated it would fall under daily reporting reprimand. Dr. Holm reviews these carefully and doesn't take potential non-compliance lightly. Investigator, Michael Bowles, indicated that during the reviewing process, the reviewing

board member can recommend suspension. This then comes back to the investigator who creates
an accusation, which goes to the AAG, then goes back to the board with the recommended
suspension.

The board expressed most concern over pharmacies that haven't reported at all versus # of days missing, # of errors, or # of prescriptions. Ms. Bell commented that if pharmacies are receiving the letters but not responding to explain why they're not reporting is a problem and they should be held accountable. Dr. Holm agreed. The board would return to discussing other subsets of delinquent reporters at a later date.

On a motion duly made by Justin Ruffridge, seconded by Leif Holm, and approved unanimously, that during the April quarterly compliance audit, those entities that are non-reporting and have not made a good faith effort to discuss with the PDMP manager their issues with reporting, should be referred to investigations. Potential actions will be guided by the board's disciplinary matrix, it was:

RESOLVED to accept the procedure for the April 2021 compliance review audit to refer pharmacies not reporting and not responding to delinquent notices.

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Leif Holm	X			
Richard Holt	X			
Justin Ruffridge	X			
Lana Bell	X			
Tammy Lindemuth				X
James Henderson				X
Sharon Long	X			

The motion passed with no further discussion.

On a motion duly made by Justin Ruffridge to amend the disciplinary matrix to define delinquent reporting specific to continued submission delinquencies as receiving no reports and no response to the Board of Pharmacy, seconded by Lana Bello, and approved unanimously, it was:

RESOLVED to approve the amend PDMP disciplinary matrix to add to the proposed sanction the operational definition of continued delinquency as non-reporters and non-responders to delinquent notices.

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT	
Leif Holm	X				
Richard Holt	X				

253	Justin Ruffridge	X	
254	Lana Bell	X	
255	Tammy Lindemuth		X
256	James Henderson		X
257	Sharon Long	X	

The motion passed with no further discussion.

Complaint	Proposed Sanctions
Registration (AS 17.30.200(e)(n), 12 AAC 52.855): No registration Delayed registration – not registered within 30 days	(Notice sent on July 7, 2020 via board letter to all pharmacists with Alaska addresses). \$250 civil fine beginning on October 1, 2020 (or after 30 days of initial licensure or after beginning to dispense schedule II, III, or IV federally controlled substances) and an additional \$25 per day until registration is completed.
Delinquent Reporting (AS 17.30.200(b)(e), 12 AAC 52.865): • Daily reporting (12 AAC 52.865)(b))	(Warning issued September 16, 2020 via board letter to all licensees) As of January 1, 2021, quarterly compliance audits will track delinquent submissions of data to the PDMP. • First reprimand: \$5,000 civil fine for continued submission delinquencies • Continued submission delinquencies may result in license suspension. A "continued submission delinquency" means a pharmacy that has not reported or responded to notices by the Board.
Unauthorized Access (AS 17.30.200(d)(4))	TBD

TASK 2

Ms. Carrillo will forward the revised disciplinary matrix to the investigative unit for their records.

Agenda Item 7 <u>Board Business</u>

Hearing nothing further on PDMP updates, Chair Holt moved to discussing board business.

Reports of Theft/Loss

The board reviewed reports from Bartlett Regional Hospital and Walgreens.

Board Website FAOs

Ms. Carrillo directed the board to the FAQs page, noting it needed to be revised for accuracy and whether any items have become obsolete. Dr. Ruffridge commented that upon initial review, there were several FAQs that were no longer applicable. Chair Holt commented the board's position on some of the FAQs may have also changed. Ms. Carrillo reminded the board of their new position statement page and that some FAQs could be turned into position statements. The board discussed delegating a subcommittee to review this page, however, Dr. Ruffridge volunteered.

TASK 3

Time: 11:15 a.m.

Dr. Ruffridge will review the website FAQs for accuracy and applicability and recommend at the board's next meeting what FAQs need to be added, updated, removed, or turned into position statements.

<u>Update on Letter to Board of Nursing</u>

Ms. Carrillo pointed to the board's letter sent to the Board of Nursing regarding 12 AAC 44.440(c)(2) requiring certain details be present on the label for it to be dispensed by a pharmacy. Chair Holt inquired that if a prescription is presented to a pharmacy that doesn't contain the credentials, "APRN" after the signature and doesn't contain their professional license number, is it considered a valid prescription? Chair Holt also considered whether the responsibility to obtain missing information falls to pharmacists. Ms. Long's opinion is the board shouldn't go in the direction of being an enforcer for non-compliance issues with the nurse practitioner, adding they can notify them of the missing information but let them and their boards deal with that infraction. Ms. Long also stated the pharmacist could take the time to file a complaint with the appropriate unit but discouraged policing this matter.

Ms. Carrillo inquired whether there were repercussions on the pharmacist end if these medications were dispensed. Chair Holt recalled a situation in which a pharmacy was audited and a third-party company found the medications weren't dispensed according to state law, adding the pharmacy was attempting to recoup the cost back. Ms. Long expressed that may be one example, but we don't always know the ultimate outcome of the liability.

Correspondence: Nancy Kavan

The board reviewed correspondence from pharmacist, Nancy Kavan. Dr. Kavan inquired about providing input on the jurisprudence test. Upon review, it was unclear whether she was referring to the MPJE or the jurisprudence questionnaire, the latter of which has been removed from renewal applications.

TASK 4

Ms. Carrillo will follow up with Nancy Kavan to find out if she was referring to the jurisprudence questionnaire or the MPJE.

Correspondence: NABP

The 117th Annual Meeting will be held virtually on May 13 and 14, 2021. Dr. Ruffridge expressed an interest in attending. Ms. Carrillo also indicated her intent to participate. Ms. Carrillo recalled from participating in 2018 the major topics being nationally certified technicians, which the board has since adopted regulations for, and pharmacist prescriptive authority, which is on the board's agenda for day 2. Ms. Carrillo then informed the board the most recent version of the pharmacy law is available.

The NABP also began issuing exam scores for the MPJE and NAPLEX with a pass/fail instead of representing the score with a percentage. Ms. Carrillo stated it doesn't affect the board's current pass/fail regulations as the NABP's pass threshold is at 75%, which aligns with the board's

- requirements. The board then reviewed the MPJE item workshop correspondence, which will be held remotely from March 1-26. The purpose of the workshop is to write law questions. Chair
- 240 Helt described the propose of merticinetings the NAPD excite the participant a segment file around
- Holt described the process of participating: the NABP emails the participant a secure file around
- 341 categories of law, e.g.: hazardous waste, licensing, and professional practice; a list will be provided
- showing how many questions Alaska has and categories each question into its corresponding
- category topic; and a list of questions that were previously developed but are still in the testing
- phase in review by a committee. Chair Holt also clarified that the workshop isn't the time to
- remove questions, but it's possible to still assess for applicability. All questions go through a
- statistical model to determine whether they are "good" questions.

347

- 348 Ms. Carrillo inquired whether the NABP provides participants with the exam pass rate. Chair
- Holt's recollection from a few years ago was that it was around 80%. Dr. Holm asked how many
- questions participants are expected to write, to which Chair Holt indicated was about 20-30. Dr.
- Holm expressed an interest in participating but wanted to know if the writing could be split up
- between more than one participant. Chair Holt asked Ms. Carrillo to inquiry about how questions
- 353 could be split between multiple participants, adding he would also be interested in participating.

354

- 355 TASK 5
- 356 Ms. Carrillo will contact the NABP to register herself and Dr. Ruffridge for the 117th Annual
- 357 Meeting.

358

- 359 TASK 6
- 360 Ms. Carrillo will contact the NABP to inquire if exam writing can be split between multiple
- and what that process might entail.

362

- Ms. Long circled back to the correspondence from an applicant who had submitted a letter to withdraw. Due to this specific matter being discussed in executive session, the board expressed it
- would be appropriate to again go into executive session, sometime after lunch.

366

367 Leif Holm left the room at 11:46 a.m.

368

- 369 <u>Correspondence: Jessica Adams</u>
- The board reviewed correspondence from Jessica Adams with TelePharm and Ms. Carrillo noted
- the board had previously discussed remote pharmacy regulations.

372

- 373 Strategic Plan
- 374 Ms. Carrillo pulled up the board's 2020 strategic plan and inquired whether the board had anything
- to add to it for 2021. Ms. Carrillo stated she would work on the 2021 strategic plan and present it
- 376 to the board during their May meeting. If approved, Ms. Carrillo will post it to the website.

- 378 TASK 7
- 379 Ms. Carrillo will work on the board's 2021 strategic plan for review and discussion during the May
- 380 meeting.

381 Chair Holt called for lunch at 11:58 a.m.

382

383 Off record at 11:58 a.m. 384 On record at 1:04 p.m.

385

387

386 Agenda Item 8 Lunch

Time: 11:58 a.m.

Upon return from lunch, Ms. Carrillo performed a roll call.

388 389 390

Board members present, constituting a quorum:

391 392

393

394

395

396

Richard Holt, PharmD #PHAP2008, MBA – Chair Leif Holm, PharmD #PHAP1606 – Vice Chair Lana Bell, RPh #PHAP893 Tammy Lindemuth, Public Member Sharon Long, Public Member

Sharon Long, Public Member Justin Ruffridge, #PHAP1787

397 398 399

The board recalled their intent from before lunch to enter executive session to discuss an applicant matter.

400 401 402

403

404

On a motion duly made by Richard Holt in accordance with AS 44.62.310(c)(2), the board unanimously moved to enter executive session for the purpose of discussing subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided the person may request a public discussion.

405 406 407

408

RESOLVED to enter into executive session in accordance with AS 44.62.310(c)(2).

409		APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
410	Leif Holm	X			
411	Richard Holt	X			
412	Justin Ruffridge	X			
413	Lana Bell	X			
414	Tammy Lindemuth	n x			
415	James Henderson				X
416	Sharon Long	X			

417 418

The motion passed with no further discussion.

419

420 Off record for executive session at 1:07 p.m.

421 On record from executive session at 1:37 p.m.

In the interest of the time, Chair Holt moved to Agenda Item #10, after which time the board would address Agenda Item #9 for Work Group/Subcommittee Updates.

424 425 426

423

Agenda Item 10 <u>Industry/Profession Updates</u>

427

- 428 AKPhA (Molly Gray)
- Ms. Gray provided an update on its annual meeting on February 14; the AKPhA had 10 sponsors
- and were able to provide 16 hours of continuing education credit, with an additional 5 hours of CE available. Ms. Gray also expressed thanks to Ms. Sherrell and Dr. Ruffridge for their update on
- behalf of the Board of Pharmacy and PDMP. Ms. Gray then recalled the awards presented to
- outstanding pharmacists, including Bowl of Hygia Award, which was awarded to Chair, Rich Holt.
- Other items from the NABP update include an immunization training program and a virtual
- Zoom fly-in for connecting with legislators.

436 437

Agenda Item 9 Work Group/Subcommittee Updates Time: 1:44 p.m.

438

- 439 COVID Chairs
- Dr. Holt informed the board he continues to meet bi-weekly with healthcare boards.

441

- 442 *CSAC*
- 443 Ms. Lindemuth indicated the committee met last Tuesday after not meeting since October. The
- 444 committee decided to make a recommendation to Governor Dunleavy to schedule Kratom as a
- 445 IIIA controlled substance. The committee is also continuing to discuss scheduling gabapentin. Ms.
- Lindemuth clarified that if gabapentin is scheduled as VA, it won't interfere with continuity of care
- but would be a benefit to the criminal justice system with by providing the ability to prosecute
- 448 related matters.

449 450

Agenda Item 10 <u>Industry/Profession Updates</u>

opened up critical care employees 50 years and older and teachers.

451 452

453

454

455

456 457

458

459

The board returned to industry/profession updates as Dr. Narus was on the line to discuss pharmacist enrollment, Medicaid regulations, and the federal retail pharmacy program. Dr. Narus provided that there were 112 pharmacists enrolled and 10 pharmacy professional groups. Over 5,000 vaccine administrations have occurred in assisted living homes and several other hundreds who have been vaccinated by state pharmacy partners in regions were CVS and Walgreens aren't located. Dr. Narus added Alaska has been slightly impacted by the weather that's occurred in the lower 48 in terms of vaccine availability, but we anticipate this smoothing out over the next few weeks. Over the last two weeks, the next tier of populations eligible to receive vaccines has

460 461 462

463

Dr. Narus then reviewed the Federal Retail Pharmacy Program for COVID-19, which is a collaboration between the federal government, states and territories, and national pharmacy partners to expand access to vaccinations.

464 465 Time: 1:39 p.m.

Time: 1:50 p.m.

Dr. Narus then reviewed the Medicaid coverage regulations from the Department of Health and 466 467 Social Services. The regulations include language related to reimbursements and allowing 468 pharmacists to administer vaccines within their scope and without a collaborative practice to be reimbursed. Language was also amended to be able to provide vaccine products in future disaster 469 emergencies so existing efforts aren't limit just to COVID-19 in the event another health 470 471 emergency emerges. Dr. Narus also discussed the Vaccine for Children Program; pharmacies must 472 be enrolled in the program in order to be reimbursed for providing vaccines given to a child under 473 18 and younger.

474 475

476

477

478 479

480

481

Dr. Narus then turned to regulations that went into effect in on 02/12/2021 related to Medicaid coverage and payment for pharmacy services during a declared emergency. There is also a provision extending the standard 34-day fill to a 68-day fill to result in enhanced dispensing. The board and discussed reimbursement models and state versus federal vaccine allocations. The standard state allocation hinges on a per capita allocation, which involves taking a big bucket of vaccines and distributing it amongst the state. There is also a separate bucket for federal retail partnerships and other allocations for the IHS, DOD, and VA. The long-term care program uses state allocated vaccines.

482 483 484

Documents Dr. Narus referenced in this update can be found in the public board packet posted to pharmacy.alaska.gov.

485 486 487

Agenda Item 11 Public Comment 2

488 489

There were no public comments.

490 491

Agenda Item 9 Work Group/Subcommittee Updates

492 493

The board returned to subcommittee updates.

494 495

CSAC (continued)

496 Ms. Lindemuth clarified that the recommendation to the Governor would be compounds within 497 498

kratom, including mitragynine. The next CSAC meeting will be from May 11 from 2:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. Ms. Carrillo commented that at a recent PDMP Chairs meeting, the possibility of inviting a member from the CSAC to their next meeting on March 2nd. Ms. Lindemuth indicated she would be interested in attending.

500 501 502

499

TASK 8

503 Ms. Carrillo will reach out to Ms. Lindemuth about joining the PDMP Chairs Meeting.

504 505

Compounding Subcommittee

Dr. Holm informed the board there was nothing new to report other than draft regs that were 506 507 started a few months ago. Dr. Holm and Dr. Ruffridge will continue working on this.

508

Time: 2:17 p.m.

Time: 2:22 p.m.

509 PDMP Chairs

Chair Holt informed the board the meetings continue to be a place to discuss ongoing matters, assisting other professionals, providing details as to what the Board of Pharmacy has done, and demonstrating what has been successful for our program. Chair Holt stated overall it is a good discussion group, and reiterated the invitation for Ms. Lindemuth to attend.

AKPhA

Dr. Ruffridge indicated he's still assisting with work on the introduction of the mobilization act. The AKPhA is working with Sen. Revak for drafting that has come back from legal and are waiting on a final draft before it's introduced to the floor. Dr. Ruffridge expressed his excitement to see this go forward based on the discussion from the last meeting.

Agenda Item 12 <u>Investigative Report</u>

Investigator, Michael Bowles joined the board as their newly assigned investigator. Investigator Lipker stated Investigator Jacobs had left the unit and that Mr. Bowles volunteered to assist the Board of Pharmacy. Mr. Bowles introduced himself to the board, stating his background is in healthcare administration. He was previously in the army and is finishing his master's degree in healthcare administration.

Mr. Bowles then presented the investigative report, which included activity from October 27 through February 5, 2021. There are 48 cases open and 13 PDMP cases have since been closed, with an additional 13 matters also closed. Mr. Bowles explained that once their unit receives a formal complaint packet or they find an issue once reviewing the packet, the matter is elevated to an investigation. The complaint stage can be considered an "inquiry" stage.

Chair Holt referred to the historical matters from 02/15/2017 and 06/06/2017. Investigator Bowles indicated these have already been presented to the board, but we are waiting for the respondent. Investigator Lipker added they couldn't discuss specifics with each case; but generally, these matters were initially opened in 2017 and since closed, but because applications were received to renew, the matters were re-opened within the same case #. Ms. Lindemuth pointed to a 2018 complaint, to which Mr. Bowles indicated it had since been elevated to an investigation.

Ms. Lindemuth inquired about the timeframe for closing an investigation. Investigator Bowles indicated the goal is 6 months, adding that if it is a matter arising from an application issue, resolution is typically within that timeframe, but if it's something more complicated, e.g.: from a CMS audit and results come back as there being extreme unprofessional conduct, it can take years. Investigator Lipker stated it can be confusing because "investigation" is actually used sparingly; the unit calls it a complaint for the purpose of communicating that to the licensee, but "investigation" is used towards the end of the matter.

Ms. Carrillo also pointed to the inspection checklist and example letter, which was a task from the previous meeting. Chair Holt asked that all board members review the checklist to review for

Time: 2:30 p.m.

relevance and for discussion at the next meeting, similar to the FAQs task, so the board can provide input on what should be inspected during an audit.

Task 9

All board members review the checklist and sample letter in preparation for discussion at the next meeting.

Chair Holt called for break at 2:45 p.m.

Off record at 2:45 p.m. On record at 2:55 p.m.

Agenda Item 13 <u>Budget Report/Division Update</u>

Deputy Director Walsh joined the board to present its FY21 1st quarter report. The board's ending 1st quarter revenue is at \$738.420, which is reflected in the influx of revenue due to renewal. Total expenditures is at \$131,957, the bulk of which includes nearly \$54,000 in personal services and about \$14,000 in investigative expenditures for indicator costs. For indirect expenditures, the placeholder is at \$64,000 to internal administrative costs, departmental costs, and statewide costs. The board's cumulative surplus is at \$825,693. Deputy Director Walsh then pointed to the FY21 1st and 2nd combined quarter, which reflects a total revenue of \$893,427, total expenditures over \$302,013, and an ending cumulative surplus of \$810,644.

Ms. Long inquired why the board would operate on a surplus over \$800,000, to which Administrative Officer, Melissa Dumas, indicated the division is required to maintain a neutral fund with surplus and the cost to run the program. A surplus is not obscene; it's more than 1 year's worth of expenditures, which is what the department usually strives for to account for variable costs that we can't anticipate.

Ms. Dumas, went over the board's PDMP report, which reflects nearly \$33,000 in revenue from the user fee. Ms. Dumas indicated there will be adjustments due to incorrect coding, which will result in an increase in revenue once corrected. Expenditures charged to the program include time occupational licensing examiners spend to process registrations. It was also added that two grants were received that will allow the program to charge investigative time.

Moving to the fee analysis, Ms. Dumas indicated the division hasn't proposed a new fee amount for any license category. Ms. Dumas also clarified that when looking at expenditures from personal services, the board will expect to see that increase slightly due to the new occupational licensing examiner. Ms. Carrillo inquired about the fingerprinting fee and when there would be an opportunity to make changes to the centralized fee regulations. Ms. Dumas indicated she would look into that.

The board did not propose to adjust the fees.

Time: 2:56 p.m.

Task 10

596 Ms. Carrillo will follow-up with Ms. Dumas on amending centralized regulations to include 597 fingerprint fees for the Board of Pharmacy.

Deputy Director Walsh then moved to discussing general legislative updates that may affect the division or the board of pharmacy. The board inquired, with regards to the AKPhA modernization bill, what the protocol is for supporting their efforts. Deputy Director Walsh indicated the board should go on the record with what the board supports specifically. If there are any changes, this would be a good opportunity to address that while the members are on record and assembled. Deputy Director Walsh added that the board needs to ensure if they're on record supporting the bill, there shouldn't be any section that, once in a hearing, the board finds they are not in support of.

Ms. Carrillo then addressed SB70, which is the standing order legislation to remove the sunset date for issuing naloxone. Chair Holt inquired how the standing order is being used currently; whether providers are using their existing scope or if it's private citizens. Ms. Carrillo indicated her understanding that it applies to professionals listed in a specific subjection of the law, which includes pharmacists and other healthcare providers. Ms. Carrillo added the source of naloxone kits may be coming from DHSS' grant-funded Project Hope, to which Dr. Ruffridge confirmed.

TASK 11

Ms. Carrillo will reach out to OSMAP for how the standing order is being used and by whom, and where the source of the kids are coming from.

Agenda Item 14 Administrative Updates

Continuing Education Audit

Ms. Carrillo informed the board that 9 licensees initially appeared to not have complied with the continuing education audit. Upon further review, 3 had complied with their audit, but documentation was not immediately visible due to licensees not adding Alaska to their NABP eProfile. Ms. Carrillo indicated there will need to be clear instruction on next year's renewal application to be sure to add Alaska as a state to avoid being flagged as potentially non-compliant.

Outstanding Information Update

Ms. Carrillo stated there initially appeared to be 202 reports missing from 2017 and 70 reports missing from 2019. Further review revealed some pharmacies had submitted these, but were filed under different document categories, e.g.: report, annual information update, and annual report. Ms. Carrillo stated she would be working to improve tracking by coordinating with staff on how to scan and file these documents using one type of filing category. Ms. Noe is receiving responses to the missing reports and filing them accordingly.

 Time: 3:45 p.m.

638 Task Lists

Ms. Carrillo reviewed the task lists from the November and December 2020 meetings. All tasks have been completed, with the two pending regulations tasks set for discussion on day 2.

Task Lists: Definition of "administer" and Negative-Implication Canon

One task included asking DOL to clarify why it is required to state "administer" on the prescription from the *practitioner*, if it is already in the pharmacists' scope under AS 08.80.480(3) to engage in "drug administration." As an example, the board asked that if a patient is COVID-19 positive, can the pharmacist administer immunoglobulin without an order. DOL via AAG Megyn Weigand responded they cannot without an order from the practitioner. The board also asked what was required to be on the order to give pharmacists explicit instruction to administer, to which AAG Weigand indicated "administer" must be clearly stated; pharmacists cannot assume they can administer, for example, if they receive an order for an injectable drug.

AAG Weigand went on to describe the Negative-Implication Canon, which is a rule excluding unspecified items when existing language does specify others. The result is the prohibition against engaging in or authorization certain items if they are not clearly listed, but other items are. An example would be if the board's statutes allowed administering of specific drugs, the drugs not listed would then be prohibited from being administered. The board expressed concern about this rule and requested clarification as to whether there was any leeway, or if defining something truly has an exclusionary effect.

Dr. Ruffridge highlighted that the board's COVID emergency response was successful largely because of defining language around vaccines and emergency medications, but questioned whether this has inadvertently pigeon-holed the board, and restricting them from expanding out in the future, to antipsychotic meds, for example. Ms. Long also expressed concern, believing there must be some wiggle language to allow boards to be more flexible instead of having to list everything under the sun to not fall into this negative implication principle. Ms. Long recalled her time working with the legislature when there were challenges prohibiting designer drugs; if a few isotopes were changed, it wouldn't be prohibited anymore, so it seems there are solutions DOL can help the board with.

TASK 12

Ms. Carrillo will follow up with Deputy Director Walsh to request clarification on the Negative Implication Canon.

Task List: Remote Order Pharmacy Services by Out-of-State Pharmacy

The board then moved to the task relating to remote order entry services performed by out-of-state pharmacies. Ms. Carrillo recalled this involved a specific out-of-state pharmacy that was tied to a pharmacist license application. Dr. Ruffridge clarified the matter related to the ability for non-resident pharmacies to perform remote order entries though the regulation limits that to in-state pharmacies only.

Ms. Carrillo included a response from DOL for which the board asked for clarification around whether an out-of-state pharmacy can provide telepharmacy services without an Alaska pharmacist license. The guidance went on to state there is no prohibition between non-resident pharmacies partnering with in-state pharmacies, but that the central pharmacy and pharmacist employed by the central pharmacy must be Alaska-licensed. Ms. Carrillo interpreted this meaning that out-of-state pharmacies cannot perform remote services since the regulation only applies to central and remote pharmacies in the state, but that the out-of-state pharmacist must be licensed; essentially the pharmacist can be licensed but not perform these duties under the employment of a non-resident pharmacy.

The board requested additional information as to the circumstances surrounding the pharmacist's application status. Ms. Carrillo stated she would forward relevant documents to the board for discussion on Day 2.

TASK 13

Ms. Carrillo will forward to the board additional information surrounding the pharmacist applicant's request.

Agenda Item 15 Recess

Ms. Lindemuth moved to recess the meeting at 4:29 p.m.until February 19, 2021 at 9:00, seconded by Ms. Long.

Off record for recess at 4:29 p.m.

Time: 4:29 p.m.

724	State of Alaska							
725	Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development							
726	• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing						
727	<u>-</u>	S						
728	Alaska Board of Pharmac	cy						
729								
730		ʻING						
731		C						
732		iterence						
733 734 735 736 737 738	By authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with Article 6, a scheduled meeting of the Board of Pharma February 18 - 19, 2021. Due to the COVID-19 pandemin not available.	acy via videoconference on						
739		Time: 9:10 a.m.						
740								
741	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	der by Chair, Rich Holt at 9:10						
742 743								
743 744								
745								
746								
747	Leif Holm, PharmD #PHAP1606 - Vice Chair							
748	Lana Bell, RPh #PHAP893							
749	Tammy Lindemuth, Public Member (joined at 1:02 p.m.)						
750	Sharon Long, Public Member (joined at 9:20 a.m.)							
751								
752								
753	Division staff present:							
754	Laura Carrillo, Executive Administrator							
755	Lisa Sherrell, PDMP Manager							
756	Bethany Carlile, Occupational Licensing Examiner							
757	Melissa Dumas, Administrative Officer							
758	Ilsa Lund, Alaska Board of Veterinary Examiners							
759								
760	Members from the public present/registered:							
761								
762	Pauline Henriques-Perry, Division of Legislative Audit							
763	Brenda Walker, VA							
764	Lauren Paul, CVS Health							
765	Lisa Sherrell, State of Alaska							

Jessica Adams, TelePharm

Molly Gray, Alaska Pharmacists Association

Ashley Schaber, Alaska Pharmacists Association/Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

James J Henderson (DLA), DLA

Caren Robinson, AkPhA

Lis Houchen, NACDS

Jennifer Adams, Idaho State University College of Pharmacy

Lorri Walmsley, Walgreens

Agenda Item 2 Review/Approve Agenda

Chair Holt reviewed the agenda for day 2. Ms. Carrillo informed the board that the AKPhA's modernization bill was uploaded to OnBoard. Chair Holt added that if the board wished to further discuss the license application withdrawal from the previous day, they could do so under executive session. Ms. Carrillo commented there is additional information regarding the remote order processing with PipelineRx. Ms. Carrillo also added she had requested DOL presence to discuss the Negative-Implication Canon, but that there it is likely an AAG won't be available due to other priorities.

On a motion duly made by Justin Ruffridge to approve the meeting agenda as amended by adding DOL discussion regarding PipelineRx, seconded by Lana Bell, and approved unanimously, it was:

RESOLVED to accept the February 19, 2021 meeting agenda as amended.

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT	
Leif Holm	X				
Richard Holt	X				
Justin Ruffridge	X				
Lana Bell	X				
Tammy Lindemuth				X	
James Henderson				X	·
Sharon Long				X	

The motion passed with discussion from the board regarding returning to executive discussion for the purpose of discussing the withdrawal application. Dr. Ruffridge indicated from additional correspondence received, there is no need to further that discussion.

Agenda Item 3 <u>Ethics disclosures</u>

Time: 9:15 a.m.

Time: 9:11 a.m.

806 No ethics to disclose.

Agenda Item 4 Public Comment 3

Chair Holt clarified for the public that for the board's regulation discussion, there are two pieces related to regulations that previously closed for public comment; the board will not be able to entertain comments related to those subjects.

There was nobody on the line to provide public comment.

Agenda Item 5 Regulations Overview

Sharon Long joined the meeting at 9:20 a.m.

Ms. Carrillo provided documents for the board's reference relating to steps in the regulations process.

<u>12 AAC 52.060 – 995 – ended 05/15/2020</u>

This was included for reference; the board previously reviewed the public comments in May related to emergency regulations.

<u>12 AAC 52.110 – ended 12/29/2020</u>

No comments were received with these regulations relating to the emergency permit language and courtesy license language.

The Board reviewed the changes made to 12 AAC 52.110 expanding the existing emergency permit for pharmacists to include technicians and interns. A new section was also created for emergency courtesy licenses for pharmacists, technicians, and interns. Ms. Carrillo noted there were no public comments received by the deadline, December 29, 2020. The board's intent was to make these regulations permanent.

On a motion duly made by Justin Ruffridge to adopt the emergency regulations in 12 AAC 52.110 as permanent, seconded by Sharon Long and approved unanimously, it was:

RESOLVED to adopt the emergency regulations for 12 AAC 52.110 concerning emergency permits and courtesy licenses as permanent.

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Leif Holm	X			
Richard Holt	X			
Justin Ruffridge	X			
Lana Bell	X			
Tammy Lindemuth				X
James Henderson				X
Sharon Long	X			

Time: 9:17 a.m.

Time: 9:18 a.m.

The motion passed with no further discussion.

TASK 14

Ms. Carrillo will sign the affidavit of board action and certifying changes for the emergency to permanent regulation, 12 AAC 52.110, and will forward the documents to the regulations specialist.

12 AAC 52.855 - ended 02/11/2021

These regulations relate to the timeframe to register with the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program. The Board then reviewed public comments relating to the PDMP registration timeframe of 30 days. Chair Holt read out loud for the record each comment received, noting some comments were related to other PDMP topics and not specifically to the proposal. In considering comment from the Board of Veterinary Examiners, Chair Holt proposed separating the section referencing pharmacists in a new subsection so it was clear the language pertained only to this license group and not to other provider types. Chair Holt requested Regulations Specialist, Jun Maiquis to provide clarification on whether a new subsection could be created.

Jun Maiquis joined the room at 10:03 a.m. and clarified creating a subsection would not constitute a substantive change. No proposed changes were made to the language.

On a motion duly made by Lana Bell to accept 12 AAC 52.855 as amended, seconded by Justin Ruffridge and approved unanimously, it was:

RESOLVED to adopt the organizational amendment to the 30-day registration timeframe with the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP).

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Leif Holm	X			
Richard Holt	X			
Justin Ruffridge	X			
Lana Bell	X			
Tammy Lindemuth				X
James Henderson				X
Sharon Long	X			

The motion passed with no further discussion.

TASK 15

Ms. Carrillo will sign the affidavit of board action and certifying changes for the PDMP registration timeframe proposed in 12 AAC 52.855, and will forward the documents to the regulations specialist.

Time: 10:22 a.m. 892 Agenda Item 8 <u>Join Medical Board for PDMP Discussion</u>

893 894 895

The board joined the State Medical Board to be present for Ms. Sherrell's PDMP board report and to be available to answer questions, if needed.

Agenda Item 7 Outstanding Regulation Projects

897 898 899

896

Upon return to the record, the board and Ms. Carrillo praised Ms. Sherrell for her excellent update to the State Medical Board. Ms. Carrillo performed a roll call.

901 902

900

Board members present, constituting a quorum:

903 904

905

906

907

908

Richard Holt, PharmD #PHAP2008, MBA – Chair Leif Holm, PharmD #PHAP1606 – Vice Chair Tammy Lindemuth, Public Member Sharon Long, Public Member Justin Ruffridge, #PHAP1787 Lana Bell, RPh #PHAP893

909 910

The board addressed the outstanding regulation projects.

911 912 913

PDMP

914 The board reviewed the outstanding regulations language in the document included in the packet. Dr. Ruffridge returned to the discussion on security of email when using the PDMP. Ms. Carrillo 915 916 recalled previous discussions regarding limitations on requiring an employer-issued email; some 917 licensees may not have a job in place yet or they may change employers. Dr. Ruffridge's primary 918 concern was around security, expressing it would be helpful to use a two-factor authentication. 919 Ms. Carrillo stated there could be a change to the current 180-day frequency of changing one's 920 password; another option would be to send periodic reminders not to automatically allow their computer from remember login information. Ms. Sherrell's preference would be that people use it 921 922 in the right way, that security shouldn't be compromised for convenience. Ms. Sherrell added that 923 provider authentication is a method to verify security on the vendor end with Gateway 924 integrations. Ms. Carrillo was unsure of whether two-factor authentication could co-exist with 925 provider authentication.

926 927

TASK 16

Ms. Sherrell will request clarification from Appriss as to whether two-factor authentication is used successfully in other states.

929 930 931

932

933

934

928

Ms. Sherrell added there is a clear issue with not reviewing patient data. Dr. Ruffridge provided some insight that a physician is not going to review a PDMP unless you sit right there and have them do it. Ms. Carrillo also indicated this was a barrier identified at a recent pain closure workshop, highlighting the two schools of thought around why use isn't happening; whether it is

Time: 11:06 a.m.

no integration of the EHR or no ability for delegates to be CMAs. Ms. Sherrell clarified that delegates can still query the PDMP, but not directly within the HER; they would have to go directly to the PDMP site.

937938939

940

935936

The board began discussing next changes to PDMP regulations, including a separate section for PDMP renewal.

941 942

Chair Holt called for lunch at 12:01 p.m.

943 944

Off record at 12:01 p.m. On record at 1:04 p.m.

945946947

Agenda Item 10 Lunch

948 949

Upon return from lunch, Ms. Carrillo performed a roll call.

950 951

Board members present, constituting a quorum:

952953

954

955956

Richard Holt, PharmD #PHAP2008, MBA – Chair Leif Holm, PharmD #PHAP1606 – Vice Chair Tammy Lindemuth, Public Member Justin Ruffridge, #PHAP1787 Lana Bell, RPh #PHAP893

957958

Agenda Item 7 Outstanding Regulation Projects

959960961

PDMP

The board then discussed changed in employment and dispensing status. Ms. Carrillo recalled the discussion from the previous day and how a pharmacy should notify the department within a certain number of days following a change in dispensing or distributing status. Ms. Bell inquired whether pharmacies are asked to indicate their dispensing or distributing status, to which Ms. Carrillo confirmed.

967 968

969

970971

The board returned to discussing whether the board should require all pharmacists to register regardless of whether they're dispensing. Chair Holt recalled the board previously held a discussion on requiring everyone to register, but the board overwhelmingly felt charging every pharmacist to use the database wasn't the intent. Ms. Sherrell pulled statistics showing more pharmacists are registered with the PDMP than are required to be.

972973974

The board continued discussing potential regulation changes for the PDMP, including delegate access, which isn't explicitly mentioned in the regulations currently, similar to "zero reporting."

975976977

Chair Holt called for recess at 2:24 p.m.

Time: 12:01 p.m.

Time: 1:04 p.m.

978 Off record at 2:24 p.m.979 On record at 2:30 p.m.

Upon return from lunch, Ms. Carrillo performed a roll call.

Board members present, constituting a quorum:

Richard Holt, PharmD #PHAP2008, MBA – Chair Leif Holm, PharmD #PHAP1606 – Vice Chair Tammy Lindemuth, Public Member Justin Ruffridge, #PHAP1787 Lana Bell, RPh #PHAP893 Sharon Long, Public Member

Medications to EMS

Chair Holt addressed medications to Emergency Medical Services (EMS), acknowledging the board doesn't currently have any language addressing this in 12 AAC 52. Ms. Bell provided insight into medication allocations to the local fire department/EMS as there is an existing practice for this that falls under DHSS's Medical Services Division. Ms. Bell clarified it is the state medical director who can issue directives, and those directives can be prescriptions given at the direction of Dr. Michael Levy, Director of EMS. Dr. Ruffridge agrees with Ms. Bell that this falls under DHSS, adding it is under Title 7, Chapter 26, Section 650. Dr. Ruffridge also agrees with Chair Holt that a simple regulation writing would clear up gray area around what's required.

TASK 17

Ms. Carrillo will follow-up with the pharmacist inquiring about medications to fire departments/EMS and will provide information on where to learn more about DHSS' Medical Services division.

Agenda Item 12 Potential Statute Changes

Dr. Ruffridge went through the AKPhA's modernization bill, which was previously reviewed by the board during their last meeting. Dr. Ruffridge clarified it has not yet been introduced, but the intent is to mobilize pharmacists, to promote pharmacist independence, and to adopt language around prescribing and administering, whether that's vaccines or emergency medications. Dr. Ruffridge directed the board to potentially the most significant part of the proposal, section 8, where a pharmacist may be able to provide patient care services. Section 11 is the section around adding pharmacists to unfair discrimination. Dr. Ruffridge recalled the negative implication canon and whether the proposed changes to section 4 and 5 adding the ability for pharmacists to prescribe vaccines and emergency medications would effectively limit pharmacists from prescribing other drugs.

Time: 2:44 p.m.

Ms. Carrillo inquired whether this proposal of section 8 for patient care services can be incorporated into the board's existing language for collaborative practice agreements, and to create a separate section for patient care services, then amending the definition of pharmacist to include patient care services. Ms. Bell stated that we are now able to perform testing under CLIA, so asked for clarification as to what the end goal is: Is it to limit us to just providing information by testing, vaccinating, and ordering, or is our goal to try to expand on our ability to test and treat with the intent of follow-up with another provider. Dr. Ruffridge stated it's open-ended; the goal being that the board of pharmacy should create compensable abilities for pharmacies. In the process of COVID response, Dr. Ruffridge recalled there were areas where the board was limited; one of those areas was around testing. Dr. Ruffridge added that if you can statutorily put something in place where a pharmacist can do x, and that falls under the jurisdiction of the board, the board can define that further in regulation.

Ms. Long's interpretation is that the proposed language indicates you can provide care for anything that doesn't require a new diagnosis. Chair Holt agreed, stating that if you look through the lens of the negative implication canon, you wouldn't be able to treat a condition for a *new* diagnosis, based on strep test, for example.

Chair Holt added that the current collaborative practice authority allows us to initiate or modify a drug therapy with a practitioner, whether it is new or existing. Whereas, if the proposed language says that "...AND for a condition that doesn't require a new diagnosis...", this is much more limiting than what our current laws says. Ms. Gray provided feedback that there's two ideas: one can be struck since it's indicating what is currently the process now. The AKPhA's intention is to make sure that the medical board/association was clear in what was trying to be accomplished. Other school of thought is to strike (a), and just include (b): a pharmacist may independently provide patient care services as defined by the board of pharmacy.

Chair Holt clarified that a bill generally is to seek from the legislature authority for which you don't already have; however, subsection (a) essentially is asking for authority to enter into a collaborative practice agreements, which is in pharmacists' existing authority. Chair Holt added that scope of practice is defined by the legislature, and not by the board, and that it seems the goal of this part of the bill is to seek authority to provide patient care services. Dr. Ruffridge added that what we don't have is a statutory connection is what we can provide under a collaborative practice agreement *and* compensation. Dr. Schaber also commented to clarify that the intent of the subsection (a) was not to make it more restrictive, but that the goal is to include "patient care services" from a reimbursement perspective; to be able to get reimbursed either under a collaborative practice agreement or independently. Dr. Wadsworth from UAA commented that if CLIA can be used to guide pharmacists in testing, we don't want pharmacists to wait for collaborative practice agreements to be able to provide patient care services for general health and wellness, disease prevention, and optimization of medication therapy.

Dr. Adams from Idaho University and the UAA pharmacy program, who teaches law, clarified that in the statute on powers and duties of the board in AS 08.80.030, this could be amended to

include patient care services. Ms. Carrillo suggested adding language to AS 08.80.030 to require the board adopt regulations around patient care services Ms. Bell stated she agreed with the feedback was not sure if the language was properly worded.

On a motion duly made by Richard Holt to support the pharmacy mobilization bill that the AKPhA has drafted, version 32-LS0468\A, regarding the pharmacy mobilization act and to support sections 1 through 11 of the bill, seconded by Leif Holm and approved unanimously, it was:

RESOLVED to support version 32-LS0468\A of the AKPhA's draft legislation on pharmacy mobilization.

	APPROVE	DENY	ABSTAIN	ABSENT
Leif Holm	X			
Richard Holt	X			
Justin Ruffridge	X			
Lana Bell	X			
Tammy Lindemuth	X			
James Henderson				X
Sharon Long	X			

The motion passed with no further discussion; however, it was clarified during the motion that Dr. Ruffridge was voting as a board member and not as a participant in assisting the AKPhA with this draft legislation.

Ms. Carrillo inquired who would be representing the board in testifying to support this legislation. Chair Holt and Dr. Ruffridge volunteered.

Agenda Item 13 Public Comment 4

There were no public comments.

Agenda Item 11 Return to Regulations

The board returned to the discussion around PipelineRx. Ms. Carrillo also informed the board it was clarified there would not be an AAG present to discuss the Negative Implication Canon. Dr. Holm commented that it seems the non-resident pharmacy is performing remote order entry, so essentially is acting and performing like a remote pharmacy.

The board discussed the legal guidance and ultimately requested Ms. Carrillo follow-up for clarification. Dr. Ruffridge assisted with crafting the follow-up question: Can a non-resident pharmacy registered in Alaska but located outside of the state provide remote pharmacy services

Time: 4:15 p.m.

Time: 4:17 p.m.

in the state of Alaska? The board acknowledged a pharmacy must be registered in Alaska if 1105 1106 providing any services to patients located in the state, but it is unclear whether that pharmacy can 1107 offer remote pharmacy services directly or through an Alaska-licensed pharmacist also located outside of the state but providing that service remotely. 1108 1109 **TASK 18** 1110 1111 Ms. Carrillo will follow-up with DOL on remote order entry services performed my out-of-state pharmacies. 1112 1113 1114 The board then discussed next potential meeting dates and landed on May and September. 1115 1116 **TASK 19** 1117 Ms. Carrillo will poll the board for available meeting dates in May and September. 1118 1119 Agenda Item 9 **Adjourn** Time: 4:49 p.m. 1120 On a motion duly made by Tammy Lindemuth, seconded by Lana Bell, and approved 1121 unanimously to adjourn the meeting, the meeting was adjourned at 4:49 p.m. 1122 1123 1124 DocuSigned by: 1125 Laura Carrillo 5/25/2021 1126 Laura Carrillo, executive Administrator 1127 Date 1128 1129 1130 5/25/2021 1131 9175CB47AB5341C...
NICHATU FIOIL, CHAIT 1132

Date